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COUNT _ONE
(Bid Rigging)

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

A DEFENDANTS AND CO- CONSPI RATORS

1. At all tinmes material to this Indictnent, the defendants,
KENNETH R. ARNCOLD and ALAN SHAMS, were real estate specul ators doing
business in the Eastern District of Virginia.

2. Various firms and individuals, not made defendants in this
count, participated as co-conspirators in the offense charged and

performed acts and nade statenents in furtherance of it.



B. DESCRI PTI ON OF THE OFFENSE

3. Begi nning at |least as early as August 1991 and conti nui ng
through at |east April 1995, the exact dates being unknown to the
grand jury, the defendants and others entered into and engaged in a
conbi nation and conspiracy to limt the bidding at certain public
real estate foreclosure auctions in the Eastern D strict of
Virginia. Defendant Shans joined this ongoing conspiracy at | east
as early as April 27, 1994. The conbi nation and conspiracy
unreasonably restrained interstate trade and comrerce in violation
of Section 1 of the Sherman Act (15 U.S.C. § 1).

4. In certain instances when real estate located in the
Commonweal th of Virginia is sold, the sale is conducted by public
auction. Wen a deed of trust, commonly called a nortgage, is
forecl osed upon in the Coomonweal th of Virginia, the property is
sold at a public auction in order to protect the interests of the
nort gage hol der and the property owner.

5. When a nortgage is foreclosed, the nortgage hol der
appoints a Trustee, pursuant to provisions in the original nortgage
docunents, to conduct the sale of the property by public auction.
After required notice of an auction is given, the Trustee holds the

auction on the date and tinme specified.



6. The bidding at the public auction typically opens at the
anount owed by the property owner to the nortgage holder. The
Trustee who conducts the forecl osure auction seeks to obtain the
hi ghest price possible at the public auction by soliciting open and
conpetitive bidding frompotential purchasers. The Trustee stops
t he bi ddi ng when the highest price reached by conpetitive bidding is
of fered. The high bidder pays a deposit to the Trustee in the form
of a cashier’s or certified check. The Trustee then executes a
Menmor andum of Sal e indicating the property address, the date of the
auction, the high bidder, the high bid anbunt, and the anount of the
deposit paid. The Menorandum of Sale is needed by the high bidder
in order to conplete the settlenent of the property transaction,
whi ch usually occurs within 15 days of the auction. Once the
settlenment of the property transaction is conpleted, the high bidder
takes title to the property.

7. When a property is sold at a forecl osure auction, any
anount paid for the property above the anobunt owed to the nortgage
hol der (s) represents the property owner’s equity in the property and
is paid to the property owner.

8. The charged conbi nati on and conspiracy consisted of a
conti nui ng agreenent, understandi ng, and concert of action anong the
def endants and co-conspirators to rig bids, the substantial terns of
whi ch were:

a) to suppress conpetition by refraining fromful

conpetitive bidding at certain public real estate



b)

forecl osure auctions;

to conduct second, secret auctions, open only to
menbers of the conspiracy, to rebid the properties
won at the public real estate foreclosure auctions;
and

to make payoffs to one another in return for limting
t he bidding at those public real estate foreclosure

aucti ons.

C. MEANS AND METHODS OF THE CONSPI RACY

9. For the purpose of form ng and carrying out the charged

conbi nation and conspiracy, the defendants and co-conspirators did

t hose things that they conmbi ned and conspired to do, including,

anong ot her things:

a)

b)

d)

agreeing to limt conpetition with one another at
certain public real estate foreclosure auctions;
permtting co-conspirators to nmake bids to seek to
win the public real estate foreclosure auction

wi thout full conpetition fromthe other co-
conspirators;

pur chasi ng auctioned property at prices |ower than
woul d have resulted froma fully conpetitive auction
t her eby depriving property owners and certain

nort gage holders of the full value of the auctioned
property;

hol di ng second, secret and private auctions, open



f)

9)

only to the co-conspirators and generally conducted

by witten bid, in which the co- conspirators nade
bids to acquire each property at prices higher than
the price paid by the winner of the public real
estate foreclosure auction;

awar di ng the property to the highest of the secret
auction bids, and agreeing to divide the group’s
secret profit (the difference between the foreclosure
auction price and the secret auction price) by making
payof fs anong the conspirators;

arranging for the secret auction wnner to take title
or ownership of the property; and

maki ng the payoffs that they agreed to mnake.

10. In the nmanner described in paragraph 9, and for the

pur pose of carrying out the charged conbinati on and conspiracy,

t he

def endants and co-conspirators unreasonably restricted ful

conpetitive bidding at public foreclosure auctions of the follow ng

properties,

Property Address

anong ot hers,

on or about the |listed dates:

Auction Date

5861 Banni ng Pl ace, Burke August 30, 1991
6728 WIlls Street, Al exandria Cct ober 29, 1991
9100 Arlington Boul evard, Fairfax May 27, 1993

7496 Laurel Oak Court, Springfield June 28, 1993

9363 Peter Roy Court, Burke Sept enber 14, 1993
3404 Beechcraft Drive, Alexandria Cct ober 7, 1993
9650 Grant Avenue, Manassas Cct ober 12, 1993
5114 diffhaven Drive, Annandal e Novenber 9, 1993
6825 Lanp Post Lane, Al exandria Novenber 12, 1993
7345 McWhorter Pl ace, #111, Annandal e April 27, 1994



9213 Hood Road, Manassas May 10, 1994

5323 Stonington Drive, Fairfax June 9, 1994

8588 Ri chnond Avenue, Manassas August 12, 1994
5903 Fl anders Avenue, Springfield August 16, 1994
2246 Roanoke Drive, Alexandria August 23, 1994
803 Mosby Hol | ow Drive, Herndon Septenber 8, 1994

D. TRADE AND COMVERCE

11. The business activities of the defendants and co-
conspirators that are the subject of this count were within the
flow of, and substantially affected, interstate trade and commerce.

12. Forecl osure auctions held in the Eastern District of
Virginia regularly were advertised in newspapers that were
distributed in the District of Colunbia and in Mryl and.

13. Potential purchasers at public real estate foreclosure
auctions in the Eastern District of Virginia nade tel ephone
inquiries fromoutside Virginia regarding properties to be
auctioned, and traveled across state lines to attend such

aucti ons.



14. In a substantial nunber of instances when the defendants
or co-conspirators purchased a property at a public real estate
forecl osure auction, interstate contacts by mail and wre
initiated the foreclosure proceeding, and interstate transfers of
nmoney and docunments were necessary to transfer ownership of the
property to the defendants or their co-conspirators.

E. JURI SDI CT1 ON_AND VENUE

15. The conbinati on and conspiracy charged in this count was
formed in and carried out, in part, within the Eastern District of
Virginia, within the five years preceding the return of this
| ndi ct nment .

(In violation of Title 15, United States Code, Section 1.)



COUNT _TWD
(Mai | Fraud)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. KENNETH R. ARNCLD i s hereby indicted and made a def endant
in this count.

2. During at | east COctober 1993, the exact dates being
unknown to the grand jury, the defendant, KENNETH R. ARNOLD, and
others, within the Eastern District of Virginia, as part of an
ongoi ng arrangenent, did know ngly devise and intend to devise a
schene and artifice to defraud and to obtain noney and property by
means of false and fraudul ent pretenses, representations and
prom ses fromthe nortgage holders and owners of a property that was
being sold at a public real estate foreclosure auction in the
Eastern District of Virginia. That schene and artifice to defraud
consi sted of suppressing conpetition at the public auction of a
property at 9650 G ant Avenue, Manassas, VA, by agreeing not to bid
agai nst one another at the public auction, by acquiring the property
at a lower price than would have resulted froma fully conpetitive
auction, and by holding a second, secret auction and dividing the
profits of the schene (the difference between the public and secret
auction prices) anong thensel ves.

3. On or about Cctober 13, 1993, in the Eastern District of
Virginia, the defendant, KENNETH R. ARNOLD, in connection with the
auction of a property at 9650 G ant Avenue, Mnassas, VA, for the
pur pose of executing the schene and artifice described above and
attenpting to do so, know ngly caused to be delivered by nai

according to the direction thereon, by the United States Postal



Servi ce,

Cakt on,

(In violation of Title 18, United States Code,

A TRUE BI LL

FOREPERSON

JOEL |I. KLEIN
Assi stant Attorney General

” / S/ ”
GARY R SPRATLI NG
Deputy Assistant Attorney Ceneral

__________ "[sl”
JOHN T. ORR
Director of Crim nal

Enf or cenent

Antitrust D vision
U S. Departnent of Justice

an envel ope addressed to Leo Cull ey,

By:

10907 Bl ue Roan Road,

VA 22124, containing a payoff check.

Section 1341.)

HELEN F. FAHEY
United States Attorney

JUSTIN W W LLI AMS
Assi stant United States Attorney
Chief, Crimnal Division

"Isl”
ANTHONY V. NANNI

” / S/ ”
DAVI D A. BLOTNER

"Isl”
CATHLEEN M MAHONEY

DEANA L. TI MBERLAKE

Att or neys

Antitrust D vision

U S. Departnent of Justice
1401 H Street, N W, Ste.
Washi ngton, D.C. 20530
202-307-5785

3700





